
         SELECT BOARD 
          AGENDA 

   Tuesday, September 1, 2020 
         7:00pm      

The Select Board Regular Meeting is being held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order 
Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20. Interested individuals can listen in and 
participate by phone and/or online by following the link and phone # below. 

Topic: Select Board 
Time: Sep 1, 2020 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89186815721?pwd=ajRGeDcvazlMY253aVdYbTFWTlo3UT09 

Meeting ID: 891 8681 5721 
Passcode: 441561 

Dial by your location 
+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US

 One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,123906012# US (Chicago)
+19294362866,,123906012# US (New York)

Meeting ID: 891 8681 5721 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbaCXdNqb4 

Agenda Items 

1) Meet with DPW Director Tim Kilhart on the Ayer Road construction project. (7:00)
2) Review of the Annual Town Meeting draft warrant (7:15)
3) Approve minutes 8/4 & 8/19 (7:40)
4) Town Administrator Report - miscellaneous issues & discussion items (7:45)
5) Public Communication (7:50)
6) Action/Discussion items: (8:00)

a) Recognize resignation of Darren Magan from the Park & Recreation Commission
b) Appoint Keith Bilafer to the Park & Recreation Commission
c) Update on magnet fishing and unexploded ordinances
d) Discuss budget recommendation from Finance Committee and Budget Advisory Committee
e) Discuss testing of Bare Hill Pond
f) Next steps for the Insurance Advisory Committee

7) Select Board Reports

  Next Select Board Regular Meeting 
    Tuesday, September 15, 2020 

7:00pm      

Posted 8.27.2020 at 3:15pm by JAD   



Select Board Minutes                                                                1                                                                       August 4, 2020 
 

Select Board Minutes 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
7:00pm 
 
The Select Board Regular Meeting was held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order 
Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20. 

Select Board participants:  
Chair Alice von Loesecke, Rich Maiore, Kara Minar, Stu Sklar, Member Lucy Wallace was absent 

Town Department attendees: 
Town Administrator Tim Bragan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director Marie Sobalvarro, Executive 
Assistant Julie Doucet, DPW Director Tim Kilhart, Facilities Manager Jeff Hayes 

Additional participants:  
Frank Carlson, Joanne Ward 

MassWorks grant application 
DPW Director Tim Kilhart is preparing a grant application for repairs to Slough Road. If awarded the grant, he 
intends to pave Slough Rd between Mass Ave and Bolton Rd, install necessary drainage, curbing and a guard rail in 
the hollow area. He expects to know by October if Harvard will be awarded the grant funding. This paving project 
will not widen the roadway. By a roll call vote, Maiore – aye, Minar – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke – aye, the 
board voted unanimously to support the DPW application for the Slough Rd project and appoint Alice as chair to 
sign the letter for the grant.  

Ayer Rd construction project 
Kara Minar read correspondence from the Department of Transportation’s Arthur Frost stating they are actively 
reviewing a potential roundabout but are not yet seeing a clear cut case to support it. DPW Director Kilhart has 
not received confirmation from DOT therefore this topic will be discussed and finalized at the September 1st 
meeting.  

Municipal Buildings Overview 
Facilities Manager Jeff Hayes provided a report with a general overview of the most crucial areas to be addressed 
for each town building. He is aware the old library is currently the biggest concern. Hayes explained the public 
building account funds annual maintenance contracts with the remaining funds available for preventative 
maintenance. He will focus efforts on determining the optimal use for those funds. Hayes was able to explain how 
the old library can be tarped to prevent further water infiltration which will only accelerate the deterioration of 
this building. He admitted this is not a pretty option but effective. Hayes said the challenge with older buildings 
like the library is deciding on a systematic approach to maintenance because the more involved projects become 
the likelihood increases additional issues will be discovered. He will follow up with the fire department to find out 
if it is possible to utilize the ladder truck instead of paying for a lift when tarping the roof. 

Carlson Orchards request to extend hours 
Public comment 
Chris Green, Oak Hill Rd, suggested the Select Board watch the July 14th Board of Health meeting when Carlson 
Orchards occupancy for the tap room was discussed related to Covid.   



Select Board Minutes                                                                2                                                                       August 4, 2020 
 

Beth Williams, Granite View Lane, has been to Carlson Orchards quite a bit and has been impressed with the good 
job they have done to comply with social distancing and avoid overcrowding. She supports their request to extend 
hours on the patio. 
 
Owner Frank Carlson is requesting a change to their patio hours. He is asking the board to consider their Friday 
and Saturday hours of after 6:00pm, when they are required to ask patrons to move into the building, be changed 
to allow the patio to remain open until 8:00pm. They are trying to comply with Covid 19 regulations and with 
reduced seating in the building there is simply not enough room. Maiore asked if they are aware of any issues 
thus far with parking or overcrowding. Carlson answered no. He is happy with how things are operating and is 
confident they can manage when business picks up this fall. Sklar wondered what was discussed at the Board of 
Health meeting mentioned by neighbor Chris Green. Minar tried to quickly peruse the minutes but did not find 
anything of great concern. She supports Carlson Orchards request as it makes sense for the health and safety of 
patrons. Bragan explained this is a temporary change in response to Covid 19 and will be effect until the Governor 
lifts the state of emergency. 

By a roll call vote, Maiore – aye, Minar – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke – aye, the board voted unanimously to 
approve extension of hours from 6:00pm to 8:00pm on the patio until the state of emergency is lifted by the 
Governor.  

Public Communication 
Chris Green, Oak Hill Rd, was unhappy the board did not consider the building occupancy that was discussed with 
the Board of Health. He understands the desire to help the business but is disappointed neighbor concerns are 
not more of a priority. Select Board members explained enforcement of social distancing is under the jurisdiction 
of the Board of Health and not the Select Board. Their business tonight was to address the request before them. 

Appointments 
War Monument Restoration Committee 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
appoint Robert Cabelus to the War Monument Restoration Committee. Cabelus will serve as the Historical 
Commission representative.  

4th of July Committee 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
appoint Anne Hentz and Chris Connors to the 4th of July Committee. Hentz is a reappointment and Connors is a 
new member. 

Bare Hill Pond Watershed Management Committee 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
appoint Kerry Shirves to the Bare Hill Pond Watershed Management Committee. 

Minutes 
By a roll call vote, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, Sklar – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
approve minutes of 6/30, 7/7, 7/9, 7/14 as presented. Von Loesecke had a suggested edit to the 6/30 minutes 
related to the Conservation Commission appointment process but after some debate about the clarification she 
decided to leave the set as is. 



Select Board Minutes                                                                3                                                                       August 4, 2020 
 

Conservation Commission appointments 
Von Loesecke reminded her fellow board members about their direction for the commission to provide a 
recommendation prior to any reappointments or new appointments being made to the commission. Commission 
member Joanne Ward attended the meeting to reiterate the commission’s desire to have Jim Burns, Janet 
Waldron and Mark Shaw reappointed. They recommend appointment of Eve Wittenberg to the vacant associate 
position.  

The annual appointments to the commission was more involved this year due to multiple applicants interested in 
serving. The Select Board members voiced their opinions on how best to approach balancing boards with 
members who have institutional knowledge while encouraging participation of new volunteers. They discussed 
pros and cons to establishing term limits and the differences between committees being appointed versus 
elected. 

Sklar offered a compromise of reappointing two current members and appointing two new members. Maiore 
noted Shaw and Burns are actually fairly new to the commission themselves. Sklar and von Loesecke agreed 
supporting new volunteers is important with Minar and Maiore more inclined to support reappointment of those 
already serving.  They all agreed the appointment process could and should be handled in a better manner that 
supports new volunteers while valuing those with experience. Von Loesecke noted the importance of volunteers 
who are genuinely interested in a committees overall work instead of focused on a single issue. By a roll call vote, 
Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke – aye, Sklar - nay, the board voted to appoint John Burns, Mark Shaw, 
Joanne Waldron and Even Wittenberg as associate to the Conservation Commission. 

Park & Recreation Commission  
By a roll call vote, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
appoint Mark Morin to replace Steve Victorson to the Park & Recreation Commission and send a letter of thanks 
to Victorson.  
 
Town Administrator Report (Appendix A) 
By a roll call vote, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, Maiore – aye, von Loesecke - aye, the board voted unanimously to 
hold the fall annual town meeting on October 3rd beginning at 12:00pm. 

Board of Health clarification on the Transfer Station Committee 
Sklar and Maiore recommended this committee continue but with a revised mission to help navigate the future of 
the Transfer Station. With costs set to rise in the coming year it is apparent a larger question must be resolved, 
does the town continue to operate the Transfer Station as a user based service, roll it into the tax base or 
investigate town wide curbside pick-up? Either way the current model is not sustainable therefore a broader 
feasibility study is imperative. They recommend a committee consisting of five members: one Board of Health 
member, two Select Board members, the DPW Director and two citizens at large.  

PFSA testing well on Ryan Land 
Bragan reported the appropriate testing has been ordered by the DPW Director Tim Kilhart. 

Fall Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
Bragan asked the members to provide him with any articles they wish to include. He will provide them with a 
preliminary draft at their September 1st meeting. 



Select Board Minutes                                                                4                                                                       August 4, 2020 
 

Select Board Reports 
Minar invited resident Scott Winter to join for an update on a situation on Old Mill Rd. Bragan has been in regular 
contact with Mr. Winter assuring him the town is doing all it can through our legal counsel. All parties are 
frustrated this process and a resolution is not coming faster however all that can be done is being done and the 
Covid 19 pandemic has not helped the situation.  

Maiore reported the School Committee has voted to begin the school year with a hybrid model although the exact 
details have not been finalized. They will vote on this next week. His understanding is that teachers will be in the 
classroom and other teachers teaching remote. When asked about budget implications Maiore was not positive 
on that. Von Loesecke will reach out to the Superintendent.  

Maiore reported the Planning Board will focus on a senior residency bylaw, open space and recreation, Ayer Rd 
and town center action plan updates. 

Von Loesecke reported Michael Barton from the Municipal Affordable Housing Trust may have to step down 
therefore volunteers are needed.  

Von Loesecke reported now that the Finance Committee has the state budget numbers they can work on a 
recommendation for the fall town meeting. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:30pm. 

 

Documents referenced: 
MassWorks info & letters – dated 8.4.2020 
Municipal Buildings Report – dated 8.4.2020 
Carlson Orchards request – dated 7.27.2020 
Connors vol form – dated 6.26.2020 
Shrives vol form – dated 7.7.2020 
Con Com recommendation – dated 7.16.2020 
Victorson resignation email – dated 7.29.2020 
Morin vol form – dated 7.21.2020 
Board of Health memos: 
Transfer Station Committee – dated 7.22.2020 
PFSA Ryan Field – 7.29.2020 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Select Board Minutes 
Wednesday, August 19, 2020 
11:00am 
 
The Select Board Regular Meeting was held virtually in accordance with the Governor’s Executive 
Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L.c.30A. S.20. 

Select Board participants:  
Chair Alice von Loesecke, Kara Minar, Stu Sklar, Lucy Wallace, Board member Rich Maiore was absent 

Town Department attendees: 
Town Administrator Tim Bragan, Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director Marie Sobalvarro, 
Executive Assistant Julie Doucet 

State primary warrant 
By a roll call vote, Wallace – aye, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, von Loesecke, the board voted unanimously 
to approve the state primary warrant to be held on September 1, 2020. 

Appointment of election officials 
By a roll call vote, Wallace – aye, Sklar – aye, Minar – aye, von Loesecke, the board voted unanimously 
to appoint election officials as shown on memo dated August 10, 2020 from Town Clerk Marlene 
Kenney. (Appendix A) 

Miscellaneous Updates 
Alice Von Loesecke reported the culvert pipe near Town Hall with the large drop off from the sidewalk 
project has been covered over by asphalt.  

Park & Recreation Commission liaison, Kara Minar asked if the beach ticket checkers can continue into 
October. Tim Bragan met with Chair Bob O’Shea about this issue and suggested the senior work off 
program as an option. O’Shea agreed to explore this with the Council on Aging Director who facilitates 
this program. 

Minar asked for an update on the magnet fishing that occurred on the Nashoba River. Bragan said the 
army was notified but has yet to respond. The Office of Fish and Wildlife has also been notified along 
with other government agencies. Signs will be put up.  

The meeting was adjourned at 11:20am. 

 

 













August 27, 2020 
 
Hi Julie,  
 
Darren let me know he might resign a month ago so we solicited Keith. Keith is on the Field 
Sub-committee and has been attending P&R meetings for a long time. He will become the new 
field liaison and we would love to get him appointed as soon as possible. 
 
Thx, Bob 
 







Current Deficit (see Updated Financials tab) (226,639)$         (Uses FY20 Cherry Sheet Amounts which includes adding back the $100,000 we had reduced the Cherry Sheet estimate back in January, 
reducing New Growth $30,000, reducing the Overlay account by $25,000)

Worcester County Retirement adjustment 18,686$            (Final number came in below estimate)
Estimated Insurance Savings 138,000$          (This is higher than the $125,000 original estimate)

(69,953)$           Deficit Subtotal

Eliminate Police Cruiser ($45K) and Reduce Police OT ($15K) 60,000$            Cut to be made
(9,953)$             Deficit Subtotal

School Cuts (not fully known but using 1/2 of original) 112,000$          
102,047$          Surplus Subtotal

Funds from Stabilization to fund portion of Budget 200,000$          (items to be determined)
302,047$          Surplus Subtotal

OPEB Funding Reduction 75,000$            (I would not make this move this year and would save it for the next budget cycle)
377,047$          Surplus Subtotal

*The above does not utilize the savings of Merit Pay ($26,000) or having the School contribute an additional $100,000 from Devens as were originally included by Budget Advisory Group.
    This also does not include the $10,000 proposed reduction to the Tree Warden budget, which is no longer part of their recommendation as of August 6, 2020)

Updated Budget Numbers*







Budget Cut Scenarios 
Failed Override 320,000$            
State Shortfall (Est. Low End) 500,000$            
State Shortfall (Est. High End) 800,000$            

BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS: OVERRIDE FAILED

Changes to Cover Failed Override (70/30 School/Town) Cuts New $ Funding Sources TOTAL
Police officer position 60,000$              
Merit increase for town employees 26,000$              
Reduce tree warden budget 10,000$               
Eliminate drama position, reduce one HES teacher, eliminate reading 
specialist position 220,000$            
Miscellaneous expenses 4,000$                

320,000$            320,000$        

Possible Changes to Cover $500,000 State Shortfall
Draw funds from Town Stabilization Fund 200,000$                                 
Increase employees' and retirees' health insurance contribution to 30% 
(estimate; $283K potential) 125,000$                                 
OPEB funding reduction 75,000$                                   
Additional Mass Development (Devens) funds 100,000$                                 

-$                     500,000$                                 500,000$        

Changes to Cover $800,000 State Shortfall
All changes to cover $500,000 shortfall -$                     500,000$                                 
Additional cuts (to be specified) 300,000$            

300,000$            500,000$                                 800,000$        

Notes:
 - The Stabilization fund target is $1,361,319, the current balance is $1,247,600. To cover above use of funds, $313,719 from FY20 free cash will be required to maintain fund balance.
 - Unemployment costs could be $50 - 200K over budget. Overage can be covered in FY21 by the Reserve Fund, salary savings through retirements and permanent layoffs or hiring at a lower rate.




